
United Nations 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 

Nations U.nies 

CONS ElL 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

UNRE[·TRI C'::?ED 

E/CONF .8 /C .I/S~. J/Rev .1·. 
15 November 194~ 

UNITED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON ROAD AI\1D MOTOR TRANSPORT 

c.m-IMI'rl'EE I ON LEGAL AND GENERAL MATTERS AND DOCUMENTS 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE NmTH MEETING 

Held a t the Pa1ais des Nattons, Geneva, 
on Thursday, 1 September 1949, at 10.15 a.m. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. MIKAOUI (Lebanon) 

SECRETARY : Mr. HOSTIE 

Oontents: 

1. PROGRAMME OF WORK ••• •••• • ••••••••••••• page 2 

2. CONSIDERATI ON OF DRAFT PROVISIONS 
FOR INSERTION IN A CONVENTION ON 
ROAD ANn HOTOR TP.ANSPORT PREPARED 
BY TJU: EGC!Wl~·.IC cm.£([SSI::IN FOR 
EUROPE (:;: t em 4 of t.i;l3 Cor...::~ :>rence 
Agenda) (cor.tinued) . Draft 
general and forrna.l provi sions ......... pages 2 - 9 · 

I . PROGRAMII.fE • .1 • 



E/CONF .8/C.I/SR . 9/Rev .l 
Page 2 

1 . PROGRAMME OF WORK 

The Committee agreed t o defer discussion of the queet~on 

whether Annex 2 should be incorporated in Articl e 4 of t he draft 

Convention. 

2 . CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT PROVISION~ FOR INSSP.TION IN A 
CONVENTION ON ROAD M-!D MOTOR TRANSPORT PREPARED BY THE 
ECONOMIC COMMI SSION FOR lllTROPE (Item 4 of the CrJnf erence 
Auenda) (Documents E/CONF .B/3 and Addenda ( E/COIW .8/21, 
E/CONF .8/25, E/CONF .8/2,, and E/CONF .8/38J (continued) . 

Draf t general and forrna.l Provisions . 

The CHAIRMAN, opening the discussion on the general 

and f ormal provisions for i ncl us i on tn the CQnventton, pointed 

out that the C?mm.t ttee had befor e it a l arge number of documents 

rele.ting to that subject, namely: the draft general articles 

submitted by the Secretariat (D~cumant E/CONF .B/21) , which 

might be taken as the basts f or dtsc~ssion; the drafts pr oposed 

by the United Kingdom and United States delegat i ons (Documents 

E/CONF .8/25 and E/CONF .8/29) ; and t he amendments oubmitted by 

the Czechoslovak delegation t o the Uni ted Kingdom draft 

(Document E/CONF .8/38) . There was a fur-ther proposal submitted 

by the Lebane se delegation r el ating to the question of nat i onal 

secur ity . The Netherlands delegation had, furthermore , requested 

'thF:!t the l!ue&tic)n of the I'el ati.ons between adjccent Stat es be 

examined in connection wi th the Uni ted States amendment to 

Article 3, paragraph l (b) of the ECE draft (Document E/CONF ,B/25) . 

After some discuss ion, the Committee unanimously decided to 

entrus t the Working Gr oup with the draftins of the Benernl 

articles , i n the light of t he decisions to be taken by the 

Committee and such reservations expressed by variou~ delegations . 

The Committee unanimously adopted a proposal bY the CHAIRMAN, 

to appoint to the Worki ng Group representat 1VQS of S~eden and t he 

Domin ican Republic . 

/The CHAIRMAN 



E/C9HF .8/C . I/SR . ~/Rev . l 
r age 3 

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that , although it would be 

impossi ble f or all de legations to be repr esented. on the 'rlorking 

Group , delegations not represented would be enabled to put 

their . vtews before it at the appropriate moment. 

H~ invited representatives to express their views on 

Article A of t he Secretariat draft general Articles. 

Mr . HUBERT (France) , having suggested certain textual 

emendations to t he French version, proposed that Article A 

shoul d appear at the end of the General Articles 1 and not at 

the beginni ng . He also felt some misgivings about the 

inclus ion of the vague phra se " if any d ispute . . .. .. cannot 

be settl ed sati sfactorily by other means" . Such a vord ing 

might imply t hat the International Court of J~st tce might 

become a kind of general Court of Appeal. On t he other hand, 

if the Contracting Statee were free to set up special courts 

of arbi.tration t o interprete the Convent i on, tha t si tuatton 

would lead to di screpanci es in t he judic i al i nt er pretatton of 

the articl es of the Convention . He cons idered that all 

disputes which could not be settled by amicable negotiation 

between the parties concer ned, should be referred t o the 

International Court of Jus tice, and proposed, therefore, that 

the phrase "satisfactorily by other means" (" de manier e satisfaisante 

par un autre moye~" ) be replaced by t he phrase " by 

amicabl e negotiati')n" ("par vote amiable") . 

Mr . GOTTRET (S,vitzerland ) sugge sted that, as r..ad been 

·the general rule wi t h previous Conventions on Transpor t, it 

might be possible to insert a provision requiring an advi S')ry 

opinion to be obtained f r om the Secre tar iat of the United Nations 

before any dispute was referred to the International Court of 

Justice . 

Mr . HUBERT (Fr ance) considered such a provision in no 

way incompatible with the amendment he had proposed. 



E/CONF .8/C .I/SR . 7/Rev . l 
Page 4 

The SDCRu~ARY e~lained that the 1921 Convention had 

~~de prel iminary conciliation obligatory in the event of a 

di~pute , whereas the 1726 Convention had merels made t t opt i onal . 

~nder t he pr ovis i ons of the earlier Convention, any di spute had 

fir st to be submitted to an organ des ignated by the Council of 

the League of Nations . If conciliation pr oved imposeible, the 

or uan had then to submit to the Council a report on the legal 

and factual aspects of t he matter . 

By anal~Jgy, disputes arising out of the nsw Convention 

ahr)uld be referred to an organ designa.ted by the Economic and 

Social Council rather than to the Secr etariat . Such an organ 

could be of regi.onal or wor l d-wide character, according to 

c trcums t ances . 

Mr. SCHAEPMAN (Neth9rlands) enquir ed whether there was 

not a &imtlar provi s ion t n t he International t4aritime Convent ion 

wh i ch mibht shed l ight on the proble~ . 

The SECRETARY said that the organ designated by the 

Councn ? f the League under Article 5 of the Convention of 1926 

had been the Advisory and Technical Commission f or Transit and 

Corrununtcattone . 

~li. th ret\ard to t he e:1~ut:::-y made by the Nf:lther-lat'.ds 

repre sontat t ve , Article 55 of the Convent i -:>n on the . Inter 

sover:·J..'ilento.l Marit ime Consult ative Organizatton pro71,'; ,;:t for 

refer ence of di sputes c<:>ncerning the tnterpre tat t or. c:' "::1e 

Convent ton t o the Assembly of the Organization , e.- :J k't~.::J.e 56 

Pttpulated that any l egal question which coult nr)t :_;,:::. O·~'l (.led 

by the Assembly should be referred t? the Internati?r.al Court 

of Ju :J ttce . 

Mr . FOh~ (~ntted States of America) pointed out that 

Article 9 of the draft Convent~on on Freedom of Infor~ti?n made 

pr ovts t ?n f •.>r the settlen:ent .,f dispute~ which read as follows : 

/ "Any dispute 



E/COI'lF .8/C .I /SR . 9/Rev .1 
Page 5 

"Any d ispute bet:veen any two or more Contractin.g Stat e s 

concerning the interpretati on or application of the pr esent 

Convention whtch is not settled by negotiations shall be 

referred t o the International Court of Justice for decis ion 

unless the Contracting States agree to another mode of 

settlement" . 

In his opinion, that draft woul d meet the objections raised 

by the French representative more satisfactorily ·than would t he 

provisions of the Secretariat draft. 

Mr . m.JBERT (France) agreed. 

Mr. GOTTRET (Swi tzerland) said that the solution 

suggested by the Secretary correzponded exactly to what he had 

had in mind when referring to the Secretaria t of the United 

Nations . 

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) pointed out that certain States 

had already concluded regional agreelilents which made pr ovi s ion 

f or arbitr ation. It would be undesir able for the Convention 

under consideration to impose on such States the obligation of 

denouncing existing agreements . 

Since the Article i n the Secretariat draft (Document 

E/CONF.8/21) appeared in similar form in other conventions , he 

was in favour of retaining i t as lt stood . 

Mr • . BEST (United Kingdom) was l n general agreement 

with the representatives of the United St ates of America and 

of Lebanon. The provision should be kept as simple as possible. 

He would, therefore, suggest that t he Committee agree in 

principle to Article A, and leave it to the \-for king Group to 

determine the final wordi ng i n the light of t he views expressed, 

and taking into considerat i on the Art icle of the Draft Convention 

on Freedom of Infor~~tion quoted by the United States 

representative . 

/l'he C<J:r.mi t tee 



E/CONF .8/C.I/SR.~/Rev . l 
Page 6 

The Committee unanimously agreed to adopt Article A in 

E:_inciple aM. t o refer 1 t to the ~lorking G:!'oup for f i nal draft iDB . 

Mr . BUZZI -QUATRINI (Austr t a) obser ved that, in the 

a bsence of definite i nstructions from his Goverrunent , he could 

not give his f i nal approval to the proposed general provisions . 

He reser ved h is r ight to raise the point again at a plenary meeti ng 

of the Conference . 

The CHAIRMAN invited the views of r epresentatives on 

Article B. 

Mr . HUTIERT (France) said that there were certain emendations 

of a pur ely verbal character which he w?uld like to refer t o the 

\·lor kine Gr oup . 

Wi th regard to t he ac~ual substance o~ Article B, he 

considered that t he t hird sentence or parasraph 1 , which ran : 

"The Secretary-General may invt t e t o the conference such States 

ot her than Contr act ing States whose participation would tn his 

opinion be detii r able" , gave t he Secretary-General power s which 

were somewhat arbitrary and might even prove embarrassing . 

Mr . LUKAC, Executive Secretary of t he Confer ence , 

ex~lained that the provision r eferred to by the French 

rapre~>Ant.at.i.v a had been included in orde:x· Lo ant l c tpa t e ~wo 

problems , namely : t hat of inviting States who might have 

b~:;~corrJ.tj Mt:Hub~rs of t he United Nations af ter the r a t ification of 

t he Convention; and t hat of invi t ing those States whi ch had not 

ratif ied the Convention, because of the i r inabili ty to accept 

some particular clause , to attend a fre sh confer ence and ther e 

submi t the amen~ents t hey desi red. 

On f ormal gr ounds , t he objection of the French representative 

was well f ounded; it could however be met by subs t i tut ing the 

words "Economic and Social Council" for t he word 11 Secret ary

General". 

/Mr . A7KOUL 



~/CONF .f'./c .I/CJ-. . 9/ Rev . l 
?age '{ 

~~ . AZKOUL (Lebanon) suggested that the l ist ' f 

States eltgtble for i nv l t ation t o the C; nf erence now i n 

pr ?gress could be used as a basis for a list which mi ght be 

inserted in the Convention as a guide to the Secretary -0enera.l 

":hen considering what addi t ~.onal States should be invited to 

future conference~ . He hesitated t o place that r espons ibi.lity 

on the already over-burdened Econo~ic and Social Council . 

Mr . FOLEY (United State8 of America) p-:>inted out tha t 

such a lis t could I!!B.de no provision for any new State_e t hat 

might come tnto exi s t ence , He thought that t he proposal of 

t he Exec:.ltive Secretary admirably met the ob jection of the 

French representat ive . 

Mr . FRANCO (Domin~can Republ ic ) , Mr . HUBERT (Fr ance) 

and Mr . i\?KOUL (Lebanon ) agreed , 

Mr . SCRAEPMAN (Nether lands) also agreed with t he 

proposal , but asked why t he min!.mum number of requ.euts requ ired 

for convening a conference to con::;ider any pr,Jpo .:J c:sd amend.nent 

had been fixed at one-third of the tota l n\mber of C·)ntract it13 

States . 

Mr . LUK~C, Executive Secretary of the Confer ence, 

expl ained that t he proportion could not in effect be made any 

greater without implicitly providing that no amendment could 

be pu t f orward which w-as not assured in advance of adoption. 

The question of adopting a l ower minimum could be considered i f 

the Netherlands representat ive wished . 

Mr . SCHAEPMAN (Netherlands) said he would pr efer 11 ")r:e 

quarter" to " ,:me -th ird" . 

Mr . BEST (Un t ted Ki~dom) was in general agreement v:i th 

Art icle B, though . there might be some point s on whtch h1. G 

delegat i on would have to re0er ve its posit~on until further 

instructions had been received from his Gover~£nt . He was in 

favour of substituting the words "Econ")mic and Social Council" 

for the v!Ord "Secr etary -General" . 

/t4r . DVOH!'.K 



E/CONF.8/C .I/ SR .9/Rev .1 
Page 8 

Mr . DVOR.J'..K (Czechoslovakia) considered Articles B, 

C and D t o be similar i n spirit to those contained in :Che . 

United Ki~1om proposal (Document E/CONF .8/25) to which hi s 

delegation had put foLvard certain objections (Document 

E/CONF.8/38). Paragraph 3 of Arti cle B, in particular , was 

cont rary to normal practi ce of international l aw. International 

Conventions could not be amended by majority decision, 

and those who f i nd the Convention inapplicable should 

denounce i. t, unless they were able to secure the consent 

of all t he other signatortes . 

Mr. FOLEY (United States of America) agreed wi th the 

amendment proposed by the Netherlands representative . 

Mr . BEST (United Kingdom) was in favour of re taining 

t he wJrdo "one -third" . 

~~ . A?KQUL (Lebanon) pointed out that the Committee , 

'1-Then i t came to d i::;cuss Art icle H, would have to decide on the 

minimum number of ratifications required before the Convention 

could come i nto f orce . I t would be better, therefore, for 

the c.:nnmi ttee to insert in Article B a f igure related to t ha t 

contained i n Article H, rather than t o adopt a purely arbitrary 

fraction Buch 8 8 one -third or one -quarter . He accordingly 

pr oposed t hat a deci s ion on the second sentence of paragraph 1 

of Article B be deferred unti l Article H had been dealt wi t h. 

Mr. BANERJI (India) supported the Lebanese proposal , 

In order to ensure respect of the principle of unanimity, 

defended by the Czechos l •)Vak representative, the Committee 

shoul d fix the JUlmber of requests required for the summoning of 

a confer ence as high as possibl e . 

Mr. SCHAEP~~~ (Ne therlands) explained that his proposal 

had been based on the considera tion that possible ree;ional 

clevelopments might jus t ify the calling of a conference , although 

only a few of the Contracting States would be closely concerned . 

/The Committee 



E/CONF . 8/C . I/01~ . 9/fl.ev .1 
P8f3e -) 

The Committee ur.I.Wlimously agreed _to adoE!_~.~~~et?hS 1 and 

2 o..f_Article B i~...E:inci~ on t~1e t.mdersta.£1.9-l.tll.th~t the 

min~ mum number of States ·r~?U ired to request a col..f~nce .i:?U]!! 

t>e dec~ded in thL_li;~ht of its decisions on Arti~le..Ji . 

Mr . HUEERT (Fr l'_nce ) did not under r..t3Ild why S-::>vsrei gn 

States would not themselves limit their eovere:.gn!:y by dec:.ding 

in a Convention that its provisions oould be amended by majcr i. t y 

decision. He enquired whether th0re we1•e anJ' pr ecedentz for 

ouch a provision in Interr~tional Conventions . 

V~. LUKAC, Exec~tive Se cretary of the C~nference, 

quoted Article 52 of the Convention on the Intergoverr.u.nental 

Marit ime Coneultati ve Organization, which contained a.r; i dentica l 

:provi sion . Other examples could be found in the Sta ::.u teo of 

certain specialized agenc ies . 

~~. FRANCO (Dominican Re?ublic) agreed with the v i ew8 

expres$ed by the French rep:-eeentative . The Coi:'..:ni. t t ee should 

take decisions calculated to enable the Convention to grow i~ 

strength , rather than one s which f~voured denunciati~n . If a 

euffictent number of Contracting States were in favour of an 

ame-:1dment to the Convention, it •muld be wiser to a ccept i t . 

The CaAIRMAN announced. t hat Ar~ic~_JLh~ _ _ ?ee!:!_adDpted 

il!.......2r.i nc iple b,Lthe Committe~ with the ~rovieos ~\lrDe.d .v t:;L):Tti,me:i , 

and B~b ,)ect to the l'es erv-d.tion entered. by the~zechoslovak 

r epresentative . 

t:Jr . DVORAK (Czech~slovakia) declared that he woul d not 

insist a t that stage on h:.s delegation's point of view, bu t that 

he reserved hle right to raise the point agai.n i.n plenary . 

The CHI\IRHAN, repl~·ing to a su3gezti r)n by Nr . A! K0UL 

(Lebanon) , stated that the word tng of both Articles A and B >lo!.l.ld 

be the reoponsi bil i ty of the viorkinc Group . 

The mee t in:~ r oGe a t 12 .45 p . m. 




